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I. Introduction
1. The Chief, Enforcement and Consumer Information Division, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau (“Bureau”), pursuant to delegated authority, has under consideration a Petition for Cease and Desist Order, Show Cause Order, and Notice of Apparent Liability, (“Petition”) filed on July 22, 1997, by Nextel Licensing Holdings 2, Inc. ("Nextel") and responsive letters from Cordell Engineering, Inc. ("Cordell").
  Nextel requests that we issue a cease and desist order, an order to show cause, and a notice of apparent liability against 900 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio station KNNY252 in the Houston, Texas MTA.  As explained more fully below, we deny Nextel's Petition.


II. Background
2. Cordell is the licensee of Specialized Mobile Radio ("SMR") Station KNNY252, which is authorized to operate on frequency 936.2625 MHz.  Cordell was awarded the license for Station KNNY252 as a result of the 900 MHz MTA auction in 1996.
  Nextel is the licensee of co-channel SMR station WNKL373, a 10-channel trunked system authorized to operate on frequencies 936.2625 - 936.3750 MHz in Hitchcock, Texas.  Nextel has been operating Station WNKL373 at that site since 1992.

3. In January 1997, Cordell began operating Station KNNY252 at the Allied Bank Building site.
  The Allied Bank Building site is located 35.67 miles from the Nextel station. According to Nextel, Station KNNY252 caused harmful interference to its station as soon as it commenced operating.
 Nextel initially complained to Cordell about the interference.
 In an attempt to eliminate the interference, Cordell installed a directional antenna; however, this effort apparently did not alleviate the interference.
  Thereafter, in April 1997, according to Nextel, Cordell employed other technical measures designed to remedy the problem, all to no avail.
  

4. On July 22, 1997, Nextel filed the instant Petition with the Commission alleging that the Cordell station was causing harmful interference to the Nextel station, in violation of Section 333 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended,
 and Sections 90.403(e), 90.621(b), and 90.663(a)
 of the Commission's Rules.
  Cordell responded to the Petition by letter dated August 8, 1997.  Therein, Cordell did not deny the interference, but instead described the efforts it had made to resolve the interference.
  On August 19, 1997, Nextel replied, asking the Commission to dismiss the Cordell response as untimely and unresponsive to the Nextel Petition.
 

5. On September 29, 1997, in an effort to mediate a resolution, the staff of the Enforcement and Consumer Information Division ("Division") of the Wireless Telecommunications Bureau ("Bureau") met with counsel for Nextel and Cordell. As a result of that meeting, Cordell agreed, that by December 2, 1997, it would relocate the transmitter for Station KNNY252 from the Allied Bank Building site to a new site

that would be in compliance with the minimum distance separation requirements of 70 miles contained in Section 90.621(b) of the Commission's Rules. Nextel acquiesced to that arrangement.
  

6. On October 20, 1997, the Bureau granted Cordell’s request for Special Temporary Authority ("STA") to allow Cordell to continue operating at the Allied Bank Building site through the December 2, 1997 deadline.
  In a letter to Cordell granting the STA, the Bureau warned Cordell that "failure to comply

fully with the terms of this Special Temporary Authority will be cause for possible sanctions to the fullest extent provided by the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and the Commission's Rules."
  

7. On December 2, 1997, Cordell informed Nextel and the Bureau via telephone that it had relocated its station to a new site. Two days later, on December 4, 1997, Cordell submitted to the Bureau an engineering statement regarding the technical parameters of its newly located facility.
 

8. On December 11, 1997, Nextel filed a Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation with the Bureau.  Therein, Nextel alleged that Cordell was continuing to violate Sections 90.621(b) and 90.663(a) of the Commission's Rules
 because the new site remained fewer than 70 miles from the Nextel station.
  Nextel further alleged that Cordell was in violation of the terms of its agreement with the Bureau by failing to relocate to a new site that complied with the Commission’s minimum distance separation rules.
  In support, Nextel provided its own engineering statement.

9. By letter, dated December 19, 1997, Cordell responded to Nextel’s Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation.  Cordell conceded that the new site for Station KNNY252 was only 58 miles from the Nextel station. Cordell argued, however, that from the new site, Station KNNY252 was able to provide the requisite level of interference protection to the Nextel station intended by Section 90.621(b) of the Commission’s Rules.

10.  Some seven months later, by letter dated July 23, 1998, Cordell
 informed the Commission that on June 25, 1998, it "temporarily discontinued" operation of Station KNNY252 and removed its equipment from the new site.  Cordell requested that the Commission dismiss as moot Nextel’s Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation.
 

11. On July 31, 1998, Nextel opposed Cordell’s request to dismiss its Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation. Nextel asserted that Cordell’s request for relief was unauthorized and unsupported, and it indicated that because Cordell had only “temporarily” discontinued operations, Cordell could resume service from the short-spaced site in the future.
  Nextel urged the Bureau to sanction Cordell for Cordell's continuing violations.
 


III. Discussion
A.  Section 333 of the Act and Section 90.403(e) of the Commission’s Rules
12. Although Nextel has provided evidence that the Cordell station caused interference at one time, Nextel has not demonstrated that Cordell violated Section 333 of the Act.
  Section 333 of the Act
 provides in relevant part:

No person shall maliciously or willfully interfere with or cause interference to any radio communications of any station licensed or authorized by or under this Act or operated by the United States Government.

In order to sustain a claim of violation of Section 333 of the Act,
 the moving party must demonstrate that the interference was malicious or willful.
  There is no evidence that Cordell maliciously interfered with the Nextel station, and Nextel has not provided evidence warranting action at this time against  Cordell.  Rather, it appears that Cordell attempted to prevent any interference it may have initially caused to Nextel's station.  In this regard, the evidence shows that Cordell twice modified its antenna system, attempted to make other changes, and ultimately relocated to a new site at its own expense. Furthermore, to the extent that Cordell caused any interference, the interference apparently ended on December 2, 1997, when Cordell relocated its station to a new site.
  The Cordell station is also currently off the air.  For these reasons, we conclude that Cordell did not maliciously interfere
 with Nextel and therefore was not in violation Section 333 of the Act.

13. Similarly, we find no basis for concluding that Cordell violated Section 90.403(e) of the Commission’s Rules.
  That rule requires licensees to “take reasonable precautions to avoid causing harmful interference.  This includes monitoring the transmitting frequency for communications in progress and such other measures as may be necessary to minimize the potential for causing interference.” Nextel has not convinced us that Cordell failed to take reasonable steps to prevent interference when it was located at the Allied Bank Building site.  

14. Based on the evidence at hand, we find no basis for commencing a proceeding to revoke Cordell’s license or for issuing a notice of liability for a forfeiture for violation of Section 333 of the Act
 or Section 90.403(e) of the Commission’s Rules.
  In addition, given that Station KNNY252 has ceased operations, we find Nextel's request for a cease and desist order against Cordell to be moot.

B.  Sections 90.621(b) and 90.663(a) of the Commission's Rules
15. Nextel further claims that Cordell has violated Sections 90.621(b) and 90.663(a) of the Commission's Rules.
 Ordinarily, under Section 90.621(b) of the Commission’s Rules, co-channel stations, such as the Nextel and Cordell stations, must be separated by at least 70 miles (113 km).
  Under Section 90.621(b)(4) of the Commission’s Rules, however, a co-channel station may operate at between 55 miles and 70 miles from an incumbent station, provided that the co-channel station operates with a combination of effective radiated power (“ERP”) and height above average terrain (“HAAT”) contained in the Short-Spacing Separation Table within that rule.
  Footnote 2 to the Short-Spacing Separation Table explains that the permissible distance separations in the table are designed to ensure that the 22 dBu interference contour of the proposed station will not overlap the 40 dBu contour of the existing station.
  Footnote 3 to the Short-Spacing Separation Table explains that all existing stations are assumed to be operating with 1000 watts ERP.

16. Under Section 90.663(a) of the Commission's Rules,
 Cordell, a 900 MHz MTA-based SMR licensee, is required to afford interference protection to Nextel, an incumbent 900 MHz SMR licensee, in accordance with Section 90.621(b) of the Commission’s Rules.
  The incumbent licensee, in turn, is prohibited from expanding its licensed 40 dBu contour.
  In its December 19, 1997, letter to the Commission, Cordell conceded that the new site did not meet the 70-mile separation requirement contained in Section 90.621(b).
  Cordell also indicated that from its new location 58 miles away from the Nextel station, its ERP and HAAT exceeded the facilities allowed by the Short-Spacing Separation table contained in Section 90.621(b)(4) of the Commission’s Rules.
  Nevertheless, Cordell suggested that it satisfied the intent of the interference protection criteria contained in Section 90.621(b)
 because its 22 dBu interference contour does not overlap Nextel’s 40 dBu service contour.

17. The Bureau has analyzed Cordell’s engineering showing and concludes that from the new site, the Cordell station would indeed afford the requisite level of interference protection required by Sections 90.621(b), 90.663, and 90.667 of the Commission’s Rules.
  In particular, Section 90.667(a) of the Commission’s Rules
 prevents Nextel from increasing its facilities beyond its present licensed parameters. Because that rule prohibits Nextel from operating at a maximum 1000 watts ERP, we believe it is appropriate to consider whether Cordell provided interference protection to Nextel’s actual facilities as required by Section 90.667(a),
 as opposed to theoretical maximum facilities that Nextel can not obtain.  Based on our analysis of Cordell’s engineering showing, we are satisfied that, from the new site, Cordell’s 22 dBu interference contour did not overlap the 40 dBu service contour of Nextel’s station. Therefore, Cordell provided actual interference protection to Nextel.  We note that because Cordell’s operation did not comply with the values in the Short-Spacing Separation Table contained in Section 90.621(b)(4) of the Commission’s Rules,
 Cordell should have requested a waiver of that rule section prior to operating from the new site.  Nevertheless, because the Cordell station has ceased operations, we conclude that no enforcement action against Cordell is warranted at this time for that apparent dereliction.  Should Cordell ever desire to operate from that location with ERP in excess of the power allowed in the Short-Spacing Separation Table, Cordell would have to obtain a waiver, pursuant to Section 1.925(b)(3) of the Commission’s Rules.



IV.  Conclusion and Ordering Clauses

17. ACCORDINGLY IT IS ORDERED, that Nextel's "Petition for Cease and Desist Order, Show Cause Order, and Notice of Apparent Liability," IS DENIED.


18.  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this proceeding is TERMINATED. 






FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION






Catherine W. Seidel








Chief, Enforcement and Consumer Information Division






Wireless Telecommunications Bureau




�  The following pleadings are also considered herein:  a "Reply to Letter Response" filed by Nextel on August 19, 1997; a "Notice of Continuing FCC Violation" filed by Nextel on December 11, 1997; an "Opposition to Request to Moot the Proceeding, filed by Nextel on July 31, 1998; and responses to these pleadings filed by Cordell respectively on August 8, 1997, December 4, 1997, and July 23, 1998.


�  See Public Notice, DA 96-586, April 15, 1996. 





�  Petition, Exhibit 2. 


�  The coordinates at that building are 29-45-30 North Latitude, 95-22-03 West Longitude.





�  Petition, p. 3.





�  Id., p. 4.





�  Id., p. 3.


�  Id., pp. 3-4.


�  47 U.S.C. § 333.


�  47 C.F.R. § § 90.403(e), 90.621(b), and 90.663(a).  Section 90.403(e) of the Commission’s Rules requires licensees to “take reasonable precautions to avoid causing interference.”  Section 90.621(b) of the Commission’s Rules sets out separation criteria for 800 MHz land mobile stations.  Section 90.663(a) of the Commission’s Rules, inter alia, requires MTA licensees such as Cordell to provide interference protection to incumbent licensees such as Nextel pursuant to the standards contained in Section 90.621(b) of the Commission’s Rules.


�  Petition, pp. 1-4.  


�  Letter dated August 8, 1997, from William E. Cordell, President of Cordell, to Dan Phythyon, Chief of the Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.


�  Nextel's Reply to Letter Response, filed August 19, 1997.


�  See Letter from Terry L. Fishel, Deputy Chief, Licensing and Technical Analysis Branch, Commercial Wireless Division, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau, dated October 20, 1997, to Cordell's counsel, Meredith S. Senter, Jr., Esq., describing the meeting on September 29, 1997.  
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�  Letter dated December 4, 1997, from Cordell's counsel, Meredith S. Senter, Jr., Esq., to Gary Schonman, Chief, Compliance and Litigation Branch, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.


�  47 C.F.R. §§ 90.621(b) and 90.663(a).


�  Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation, dated December 11, 1997, directed to the Chief of the Wireless Telecommunications Bureau, and the Chief, Enforcement and Consumer Information Division, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau, by Nextel..


�  Id.


�  Id. at Exhibit 4.


�  47 C.F.R. § 90.621(b); Letter dated December 19, 1997, from Cordell's counsel to Joseph Weber, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.


�  The Cordell station was the subject of a pro forma assignment, which the Bureau granted on December 31, 1997.  The licensee is now Houston 936 SMR, Inc.


�  Letter dated July 23, 1998, from Cordell's counsel to Gary Schonman, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau.


�  Nextel's Opposition to Request to Moot the Proceeding, submitted to the Bureau on July 30, 1998.
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�  47 U.S.C. § 333.


�  Id.


�  Id.


�  Capitol Radiotelephone, Inc., 11 FCC Rcd 2335, 2339 (Rev. Bd. 1996).





�  In Nextel’s Notice of Continuing FCC Rule Violation, supra, note 19, Nextel did not claim that Cordell was still interfering with Nextel’s station.  Instead, Nextel focused on Cordell’s alleged noncompliance with the Commission’s short-spacing rule, Section 90.621(b)(4) of the Commission’s Rules. 





�  See Henry C. Armstrong, III, 92 FCC 2d 485 (Rev. Bd. 1983) and Gary W. Kerr, 91 FCC 2d 107 (Rev. Bd. 1982).  These cases hold that harmful interference, for purpose of FCC violations, are historically confined to instances of intentional and repeated “jamming” on other licensees’ transmissions.
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